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This Pricing Supplement relates to the Tranche of Notes referred to above. 

 

This Pricing Supplement, under which the Notes described herein (the “Notes”) are issued, is 

supplemental to, and should be read in conjunction with, the Information Memorandum (the 

“Information Memorandum”) dated 3 April 2020 issued in relation to the S$3,000,000,000 

Multicurrency Debt Issuance Programme of Sembcorp Financial Services Pte. Ltd., the “Issuer”), 

unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by Sembcorp Industries Ltd (the “Guarantor”, and 

together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”). Terms defined in the Information Memorandum have the 

same meaning in this Pricing Supplement. The Notes will be issued on the terms of this Pricing 

Supplement read together with the Information Memorandum. In the event of any inconsistency 

between the Information Memorandum and the Pricing Supplement, the Pricing Supplement shall 

prevail. The Issuer and the Guarantor accept responsibility for the information contained in this Pricing 

Supplement which, when read together with the Information Memorandum, contains information that 

is material in the context of the issue of the Notes. 

 

This Pricing Supplement does not constitute, and may not be used for the purposes of, an offer or 

solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is not authorised or to any 

person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer or solicitation, and no action is being taken to permit 

an offering of the Notes or the distribution of this Pricing Supplement in any jurisdiction where such 

action is required. 

 

Where interest, discount income, prepayment fee, redemption premium or break cost is derived from 

any of the Notes by any person who is not resident in Singapore and who carries on any operations 

in Singapore through a permanent establishment in Singapore, the tax exemption available for 

qualifying debt securities (subject to certain conditions) under the Income Tax Act, Chapter 134 of 

Singapore (the “ITA”), shall not apply if such person acquires such Notes using the funds and profits 

of such person’s operations through a permanent establishment in Singapore. Any person whose 

interest, discount income, prepayment fee, redemption premium or break cost derived from the Notes 

is not exempt from tax (including for the reasons described above) shall include such income in a 

return of income made under the ITA. 

 

Notification under Section 309B of the Securities and Futures Act, Chapter 289 of Singapore: 

The Notes are prescribed capital markets products (as defined in the Securities and Futures (Capital 

Markets Products) Regulations 2018) and Excluded Investment Products (as defined in MAS Notice 

SFA 04-N12: Notice on the Sale of Investment Products and MAS Notice FAA-N16: Notice on 

Recommendations on Investment Products). 

 

PRIIPs REGULATION - PROHIBITION OF SALES TO EEA RETAIL INVESTORS – The Notes are 

not intended to be offered, sold or otherwise made available to and should not be offered, sold or 

otherwise made available to any retail investor in the European Economic Area (“EEA”). For these 

purposes, a retail investor means a person who is one (or more) of: (i) a retail client as defined in point 

(11) of Article 4(1) of MiFID II; or (ii) a customer within the meaning of Directive (EU) 2016/97 (the 

“Insurance Distribution Directive”), where that customer would not qualify as a professional client 

as defined in point (10) of Article 4(1) of MiFID II; or (iii) not a qualified investor as defined in Regulation 

(EU) 2017/1129 (the “EU Prospectus Regulation”). Consequently, no key information document 

required by Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 (as amended, the “PRIIPs Regulation”) for offering or 
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selling the Notes or otherwise making them available to retail investors in the EEA has been prepared 

and therefore offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making them available to any retail investor in 

the EEA may be unlawful under the PRIIPs Regulation.  

 

PRIIPs REGULATION - PROHIBITION OF SALES TO UK RETAIL INVESTORS – The Notes are 

not intended to be offered, sold or otherwise made available to and should not be offered, sold or 

otherwise made available to any retail investor in the United Kingdom (“UK”). For these purposes, a 

retail investor means a person who is one (or more) of: (i) a retail client, as defined in point (8) of 

Article 2 of Regulation (EU) No 2017/565 as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the European 

Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 (the “EUWA”); or (ii) a customer within the meaning of the provisions of 

the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (the “FSMA”) and any rules or regulations made under 

the FSMA to implement the Insurance Distribution Directive, where that customer would not qualify as 

a professional client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2(1) of Regulation (EU) No 600/2014 as it forms 

part of domestic law by virtue of the EUWA; or (iii) not a qualified investor as defined in Article 2 of the 

EU Prospectus Regulation as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the EUWA. Consequently no 

key information document required by the PRIIPs Regulation as it forms part of domestic law by virtue 

of the EUWA (the “UK PRIIPs Regulation”) for offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making them 

available to retail investors in the UK has been prepared and therefore offering or selling the Notes or 

otherwise making them available to any retail investor in the UK may be unlawful under the UK PRIIPs 

Regulation. 
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The terms of the Notes and additional provisions relating to their issue are as follows:  

 

1. Issuer:  Sembcorp Financial Services Pte. Ltd. 

2. Guarantor:  Sembcorp Industries Ltd 

3. Series No.:  002 

4. Tranche No.:  001 

5. Currency:  Singapore Dollars (“S$”) 

6. Principal Amount of Series:  S$675,000,000 

7. Principal Amount of Tranche:  S$675,000,000 

8. Denomination Amount:  S$250,000 

9. Calculation Amount (if different from 

Denomination Amount): 

 Not Applicable 

10. Issue Date:  6 October 2021 

11. Redemption Amount (including early 

redemption): 

 Denomination Amount 

12. Interest Basis:  Fixed Rate 

See Schedule 1 to this Pricing Supplement 

for further details 

13. Interest Commencement Date:  6 October 2021 

14. Fixed Rate Note  Applicable 

 (a) Maturity Date:  6 April 2032 

 (b) Day Count Fraction:  Actual/365 (Fixed) 

 (c) Interest Payment Date(s):  Semi-annually in arrear on 6 April and 6 

October in each year up to and including the 

Maturity Date 

 (d) Initial Broken Amount:  Not applicable 

 (e) Final Broken Amount:     Not applicable 
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 (f) Interest Rate:  2.66 per cent. per annum 

See Schedule 1 to this Pricing Supplement 

for further details 

15. Floating Rate Note  Not applicable 

16. Variable Rate Note  Not applicable 

17. Hybrid Note  Not applicable 

18. Zero Coupon Note  Not applicable 

19. Issuer’s Redemption Option  

Issuer’s Redemption Option Period 

(Condition 6(d)): 

 No 

Not applicable 

20. Noteholders’ Redemption Option  

Noteholders’ Redemption Option Period 

(Condition 6(e)): 

 No 

Not applicable 

21. Issuer’s Purchase Option  

Issuers’ Purchase Option Period 

(Condition 6(b)): 

 No 

Not applicable 

22. Noteholders’ VRN Purchase Option  

Noteholders’ VRN Purchase Option 

Period (Condition 6(c)(i)): 

 No 

Not applicable 

23. Noteholders’ Purchase Option  

Noteholders’ Purchase Option Period 

(Condition 6(c)(ii): 

 No 

Not applicable 

24. Redemption for Taxation Reasons:  Yes 

25. Form of Notes  Bearer 

The Notes will be represented on issue by a 

Permanent Global Security 

26. Talons for future Coupons to be attached 

to Definitive Notes (and dates on which 

such Talons mature): 

 No 

27. Applicable TEFRA exemption:  C Rules 
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28. Listing:  Singapore Exchange Securities Trading 

Limited  

29. ISIN Code:   

30. Common Code:   

31. Clearing System(s):  The Central Depository (Pte) Limited 

32. Depository:  The Central Depository (Pte) Limited 

33. Delivery:  Delivery free of payment 

34. Method of issue of Notes:  Syndicated Issue 

35. The following Dealer(s) are subscribing 

the Notes: 

 DBS Bank Ltd. 

United Overseas Bank Limited 

36. Stabilising Manager (if any)  Not applicable 

37. Prohibition of Sales to EEA and UK 

Retail Investors 

 Applicable 

38. The aggregate principal amount of Notes 

issued has been translated in Singapore 

dollars at the rate of [] producing a sum 

of (for Notes not denominated in 

Singapore dollars): 

 Not applicable 

39. Use of proceeds:  Please refer to Schedule 2 to this Pricing 

Supplement 

40. Private Bank Selling Commission 
 

Not applicable 

41. Other terms: 

 

 Please refer to Schedules 1 to 5 to this 

Pricing Supplement  

 Details of any additions or variations to 

terms and conditions of the Notes as set 

out in the Information Memorandum: 

 Applicable. A new Condition 7A shall be 

inserted as set out in Schedule 1 to this 

Pricing Supplement 

 Any additions or variations to the selling 

restrictions: 

 None 

SGXF52048042

239650341
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SCHEDULE 1 TO THE PRICING SUPPLEMENT 

SUPPLEMENTAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

In respect of this Series 002 Notes only, the terms and conditions of the Notes shall be deemed to 

be supplemented by inserting a new Condition 7A after Condition 7, as follows: 

“7A. Premium Payment 

On or before the Premium Trigger Event Notification Date, SFS shall provide notification in 

writing to the Agent Bank (together with a copy of the Assurance Report and with a copy to 

the Trustee) whether the Premium Trigger Event has occurred. 

If the Premium Trigger Event has occurred: 

(a) SFS shall, promptly upon such occurrence (and in any event no later than the 

Premium Trigger Event Notification Date), notify the Noteholders in accordance with 

Condition 16 that the Premium Trigger Event has occurred; and 

(b) the Interest Rate shall increase by 0.25 per cent. per annum, effective from the first 

Interest Payment Date on or after the Premium Trigger Event Notification Date until 

the redemption of the Notes, provided that such increase in the Interest Rate 

pursuant to this Condition 7A may occur no more than once. 

If, following an increase in the Interest Rate after the Premium Trigger Event, SFS achieves 

the Sustainability Performance Target after the Sustainability Performance Target 

Observation Date, there will be no decrease to the Interest Rate and the Interest Rate will 

remain unchanged. 

All notifications, opinions, determinations, certificates, calculations, quotations and 

decisions given, expressed, made or obtained for the purposes of the provisions of this 

Condition 7A will (in the absence of negligence, default, bad faith or manifest error) be 

binding on SFS, the Guarantor, the Trustee, the Agents and all Noteholders. 

For the purposes of this Condition 7A: 

“Assurance Report” means the report issued and delivered by the External Verifier and 

published by SCI on its website (https://www.sembcorp.com) in respect of the Sustainability 

Performance Target; 

“External Verifier” means any independent accounting or appraisal firm or other 

independent expert of internationally recognised standing appointed by SFS, in each case 

with the expertise necessary to perform the functions required to be performed by the 

External Verifier under this Condition 7A and notified by SFS to the Trustee, the Agents and 

Noteholders in accordance with Condition 16; 

“GHG Emissions Intensity” means the amount of the Group’s total greenhouse gases 

direct emissions (Scope 1) from its activities, indirect emissions (Scope 2) from its energy 

consumption and biogenic emissions from bioenergy feedstocks, divided by total energy 

generated and purchased, as calculated using an equity share approach for all operations 

in accordance with the Greenhouse Gas Protocol (“GHG Protocol”); 

“GHG Emissions Intensity Reduction Condition” means the condition that as of the 

Sustainability Performance Target Observation Date, the GHG Emissions Intensity was 0.40 

tCO2e/MWh or lower; 
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“Premium Trigger Event” means a failure by SCI to satisfy the GHG Emissions Intensity 

Reduction Condition, as determined by the External Verifier and confirmed in the Assurance 

Report; 

“Premium Trigger Event Notification Date” means 1 April 2026; 

“Sustainability Performance Target” means the GHG Emissions Intensity Reduction 

Condition; and 

“Sustainability Performance Target Observation Date” means 31 December 2025. "
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SCHEDULE 2 TO THE PRICING SUPPLEMENT 

SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURE 

 

The Information Memorandum is hereby supplemented with the following information, which shall be 

deemed to be incorporated in, and to form part of, the Information Memorandum. Save as otherwise 

defined herein, terms defined in the Information Memorandum have the same meaning when used in 

this Schedule. 

 

1. The section “Definitions” appearing on pages 7 to 12 of the Information Memorandum shall be 

deemed to be supplemented with the following:  

 

““Demerger” : The demerger of Sembcorp Marine from Sembcorp 

Industries as described in Section 6 under the section 

“Sembcorp Industries Ltd” of this Information 

Memorandum” 

  

 

2. The definition of “Marine business” appearing in the section entitled “Definitions” appearing on 

page 9 of the Information Memorandum shall be deleted in its entirety and substituted therefor 

with the following:  

 

“The Group’s marine business, which has been divested pursuant to the Demerger”. 

 

3. The definition of “Sembcorp Marine” appearing in the section entitled “Definitions” appearing 

on page 10 of the Information Memorandum shall be deleted in its entirety and substituted 

therefor with the following:  

 

“Sembcorp Marine Ltd, a former subsidiary of Sembcorp Industries Ltd which has been divested 

pursuant to the Demerger and which is listed on the SGX-ST”. 

 

4. The first paragraph appearing in the section entitled “Investment Considerations – Investment 

considerations relating to the Group” appearing on pages 13 to 14 of the Information 

Memorandum shall be deleted in its entirety and substituted therefor with the following:  

 

“The Group comprises companies that are involved in and have interests in many businesses 

in energy and urban development. The Group operates in both Singapore and overseas. 

Notwithstanding the industries and countries referred to in this Information Memorandum, the 

Group may in future expand its businesses to include other industries and countries. The risk 

profile of the Group therefore, will encompass the risks involved in each of the countries, 

industries or businesses that the Group operates in. The results of operations, businesses, 

assets, financial condition, performance or prospects of the Group may be adversely affected 

by any of such risks. Adverse economic developments, locally and/or globally, in the countries 

or industries that the businesses operate in may also have a material adverse effect on the 

operating results, businesses, assets, financial condition, performance or prospects of the 

Group.” 

 

5. The section entitled “Investment Considerations – Investment considerations relating to the 

Group – The Group’s earnings may be affected by general economic and business conditions 

in markets in which it operates, such as Singapore, rest of Southeast Asia, China, India, UK, 
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Brazil and Rest of the World.” appearing on pages 14 to 15 of the Information Memorandum 

shall be deleted in its entirety and substituted therefor with the following: 

 

“The Group’s earnings may be affected by general economic and business conditions in 

markets in which it operates, such as Singapore, rest of Southeast Asia, China, India, UK and 

Rest of the World1. 

 
Significant dislocations and liquidity disruptions in the United States and Europe in recent years 

have created increasingly difficult conditions in the financial markets. In addition, global markets 

have experienced significant volatility in recent years and growth in major economies has 

slowed moderately toward their longer-term growth rates. 

 

Trade friction remains elevated among the largest trading partners in the world, the U.S. and 

China, with potential negative impact on global growth. Volatility in China’s growth or downside 

risks such as a credit crunch could have a considerable impact on regional economies and 

commodity prices. The slower growth trajectory of the U.S. could leave the economy more 

vulnerable to a large negative confidence shock. Growth and financial performance in emerging 

markets, Asia and trade-exposed economies such as Singapore are particularly vulnerable to 

disruptions to global trade flows, capital flows, business investments and global supply chains 

in the event of an escalation in trade tensions or a protracted slowdown. There is less fiscal 

and monetary policy space for policymakers in developed economies to respond to the next 

slowdown as compared to the last global shock. This could potentially result in a more 

prolonged recession if the global economy experiences another negative growth shock. 

Geopolitics also continues to be an area of concern, including ongoing threats of terrorism, 

instability in the Middle East and tensions in the Korean peninsula. These developments, or the 

perception that any of them could occur, have had and may continue to have a material adverse 

effect on global economic conditions and the stability of global financial markets, and may 

significantly reduce global market liquidity, restrict the ability of key market participants to 

operate in certain financial markets or restrict the Group’s access to capital. These conditions 

have resulted in higher historic volatility, less liquidity, widening of credit spreads and a lack of 

price transparency in certain markets. 

 

As witnessed by the previous global financial crisis, an economic downturn could bring about, 

among other things, significant reductions in and heightened credit quality standards for 

available capital and liquidity from banks and other providers of credit, substantial reductions 

and/or fluctuations in equity and currency values worldwide, and concerns that the worldwide 

economy may enter into a prolonged recessionary period. Such events may make it difficult for 

the Group to raise additional capital or obtain additional credit, when needed, on acceptable 

terms or at all. 

 
As at 30 June 2021, approximately 22% of the Group’s total assets are located in Singapore 

and 78% are located overseas. The fundamentals for the Group’s businesses remain sound as 

its Energy business has both short and long term customer contracts. The Group’s customers 

may default in their contracts/payments with the Group, close their plants or reduce their off-

take from the Group. It is difficult to predict how long these conditions will exist and how the 

Group’s related markets, products and businesses will be adversely affected. These conditions 

may be exacerbated by persisting volatility in the financial sector and the capital markets. 

                                                      
1 “Rest of the World” comprises Bangladesh and Middle East. 
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Accordingly, these conditions could cause a decrease in demand for the Group’s products and 

services, thereby adversely affecting the Group’s earnings.” 

 

6. The section entitled “Investment Considerations – Investment considerations relating to the 

Group – The Group has in the past recognised significant impairment charges for certain assets 

and, if market and industry conditions deteriorate, further impairment charges may be 

recognised.” appearing on page 17 of the Information Memorandum shall be deleted in its 

entirety and substituted therefor with the following: 

 

“The Group has in the past recognised significant impairment charges for certain assets and, if 

market and industry conditions deteriorate or environmental risks materialise, further 

impairment charges may be recognised. 

 

Impairment charges or write-downs may need to be recorded due to, among others, market 

and industry conditions, unforeseen liabilities in connection with acquisitions, economic 

downturn, operating conditions or increased competition. Exposure to climate-related risks 

arising from, among others, physical changes in climate and natural resources, the adoption of 

strategies and decisions to prevent and mitigate the effect of climate change, such as the 

introduction of regulatory incentives and penalties, carbon pricing systems, energy efficiency 

solutions and low carbon products and services, may reduce demand for energy generated by 

high carbon emitting fuels or affect the market value of certain assets, resulting in impairments, 

even if such risks do not materialise. The Group has in the past recognised significant 

impairment charges for certain assets. 

 

There can be no assurance that the Group will not be required to record any impairment losses 

in the future. Market and industry conditions may deteriorate and environmental risks may 

materialise resulting in impairment losses. Any such impairment could adversely affect the 

Group’s operating results, businesses, assets, financial condition, performance or prospects.” 

 

7. The section entitled “Investment Considerations – Investment considerations relating to the 

Group – Terrorist attacks, other acts of violence or war and adverse political developments, 

pandemic or endemic outbreaks of avian influenza, coronavirus such as COVID-19 or other 

infectious diseases, or any other serious public health concerns in Asia and elsewhere could 

adversely impact the Group’s operating results, businesses, assets, financial condition, 

performance or prospects.” appearing on page 18 of the Information Memorandum shall be 

deleted in its entirety and substituted therefor with the following: 

 

“Terrorist attacks, including in the United States and Europe, have resulted in substantial and 

continuing economic volatility and social unrest globally. The political unrest and terrorist 

attacks in certain regions in Asia have exacerbated this volatility. Additionally, a coup 

d'état in Myanmar began in February 2021, when Myanmar’s military seized control of the 

government, detaining members of the National League for Democracy party and proclaiming 

a year-long state of emergency. Civil resistance efforts have emerged within Myanmar, in 

opposition to the coup, including public protests and labour strikes, while the Burmese military 

has responded violently in putting down dissent, resulting in multiple deaths since the coup. 

This has also resulted in a disruption to the economy, contributed to in part by interruption of 

business operations, curfews, internet restrictions, sanctions and a drop in foreign direct 

investments. Sembcorp through its subsidiary, Sembcorp Myingyan Power Company Limited, 

operates a 225 megawatt (“MW”) gas-fired power plant in Mandalay, Myanmar, which 
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commenced full commercial operation in October 2018. There is no assurance that the power 

plant will be able to continue operations if the situation worsens. 

 

Further developments stemming from these events or other similar events could cause further 

volatility. The direct and indirect consequences of any of these terrorist attacks, political unrest 

or armed conflicts are unpredictable, and the Group may not be able to foresee events that 

could have an adverse effect on the operating results, businesses, assets, financial condition, 

performance or prospects of the Group.  

 

An increase in the frequency, severity or geographic reach of terrorist acts or armed conflicts 

could destabilise the jurisdictions in which the Group operates. Such developments and any 

additional significant military or other response by the U.S., its allies and/or any other parties 

could also materially and adversely affect international financial markets and the Singapore 

economy, and may adversely affect the operations, revenues and profitability of the Group. 

 

The Group’s business could also be adversely affected by the effects of coronavirus, avian 

influenza, Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome, H1N1 Influenza, Ebola, Zika virus, Middle East 

Respiratory Syndrome or other similar pandemic or endemic outbreaks of infectious diseases. 

In particular, the COVID-19 outbreak which surfaced in December 2019 was declared a 

pandemic by the World Health Organisation in March 2020. There have been border controls 

and travel restrictions imposed by various countries as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak. Such 

outbreak of an infectious disease together with any resulting restrictions on travel and/or 

imposition of quarantine measures may result in protracted volatility in international markets 

and/or result in a global recession as a consequence of disruptions to travel and retail 

segments, tourism, and manufacturing supply chains and may adversely impact the operations, 

revenues, cashflows and profitability of the Group. There can be no assurance that any 

precautionary or other measures taken against infectious diseases would be effective.  

 

The COVID-19 pandemic has caused stock markets worldwide to lose significant value and 

impacted economic activity worldwide, and it is possible that the pandemic will continue to 

cause a prolonged global economic crisis or recession. According to the International Energy 

Agency, with the recovery of the world economy in 2021, demand for electricity is expected to 

rebound in 2021, following a decline in 2020 due to the measures taken against COVID-19. 

However, significant challenges remain for economies around the world. Uncertainties continue 

to persist with regard to the strength of recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic. There is no 

assurance that the Group’s supply chains for fuel, raw materials, goods and other commodities, 

including without limitation, coal, gas, equipment and spares will not continue to be affected as 

a result of restrictions of movement of people and goods imposed by governments worldwide 

and any such restriction may affect the Group’s operations. In addition, the Group has faced 

and may continue to face delays associated with the collection of receivables from its customers 

as a result of such restrictions or economic slowdown caused by COVID-19 which may 

adversely affect the Group’s cashflows. The COVID-19 pandemic has affected the take-up and 

demand for certain of the Group’s developments arising from disruptions to overall economic 

activity and may continue to have an adverse impact on such developments or on other aspects 

of the Group’s Urban business. More recently, Myanmar has reported a surge in COVID-19 

cases amidst a vulnerable public health system, and there can be no assurance that the 

Group’s power plant in Mandalay, Myanmar, will be able to continue operations whether at a 

reduced level or at all, if the situation continues or worsens. Looking ahead, the emergence of 

new COVID-19 variants and potential new waves of outbreaks pose potential risks of protracted 

economic recovery. The successful development of COVID-19 vaccines from late 2020 is a 
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major milestone. However, supply and distribution constraints have limited the effectiveness of 

the vaccines and there is no assurance as to the long-term effectiveness of the vaccines in 

bringing the pandemic under control. Any of the aforementioned factors, if materialised, may 

have an adverse effect on the Group’s operating results, businesses, assets, financial 

condition, performance or prospects although at this point, the long-term impact of COVID-19 

on the Group’s results remains uncertain. 

 

The consequences of a future outbreak of infectious disease, terrorist attacks or armed conflicts 

are unpredictable, and the Group may not be able to foresee events that could have an adverse 

effect on its operating results, businesses, assets, financial condition, performance or 

prospects.” 

 

8. The first paragraph appearing in the section entitled “Investment Considerations – Investment 

considerations relating to the Group – The Group’s operations involve significant risks and 

hazards that could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s operating results, businesses, 

assets, financial condition, performance or prospects.” appearing on page 22 of the Information 

Memorandum shall be deleted in its entirety and substituted therefor with the following:  

 

“The Group’s operations in its Energy business involve hazardous activities. In addition to 

natural risks such as earthquakes, floods, lightning, hurricanes and winds, other hazards, such 

as fire, structural collapse and machinery failure are inherent risks in the Group’s operations. 

These and other hazards can cause significant personal injury or loss of life, severe damage to 

and destruction of property, plant and equipment and contamination of, or damage to, the 

environment and suspension of operations. The occurrence of any one of these events may 

result in the Group being named as a defendant in lawsuits asserting claims for substantial 

damages, including for environmental clean-up costs, personal injury and property damage and 

fines and/or penalties.”        

  

9. The first sentence appearing in the section entitled “Investment Considerations – Investment 

considerations relating to the Group – The Group is susceptible to fluctuations in the prices of 

energy, raw materials and other commodities.” appearing on page 25 of the Information 

Memorandum shall be deleted in its entirety and substituted therefor with the following:  

 

“The Group is subject to fluctuations in the prices of energy, raw materials and other 

commodities such as oil and natural gas (for its Energy business).” 

 

10. The first sentence appearing in the section entitled “Investment Considerations – Investment 

considerations relating to the Group – The controlling shareholder of SCI may have interests 

that differ from the interests of SCI.” appearing on page 26 of the Information Memorandum 

shall be deleted in its entirety and substituted therefor with the following:  

 

“Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited (“Temasek”) holds 49.34% in SCI.3” 

 

11. The section entitled “Investment Considerations – Investment considerations relating to the 

Group” appearing on pages 13 to 26 of the Information Memorandum shall be deemed to be 

supplemented with the following: 

 

                                                      
3 As at 30 June 2021 and includes direct and deemed interests. 
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“Investors should not place any reliance on International Finance Corporation’s (“IFC”) 

investment or involvement in the Notes. 

 

While IFC has agreed to subscribe for S$150,000,000 of the Notes (see “Subscription, 

Purchase and Distribution – Investment by IFC and ESG Consultation”), the terms of IFC’s 

investment will not restrict the ability of IFC to sell all or any of its Notes in the future. 

Accordingly, investors should not place any reliance on IFC’s investment, and there is no 

assurance that IFC will or will continue to be involved with the Issuer and the Guarantor or that 

any of the proceeds arising from the issue of the Notes will or will continue to be applied towards 

Eligible Projects (as defined below). None of the Issuer, the Guarantor or the Dealers makes 

any representation or warranty, express or implied, regarding IFC’s participation in the Notes 

as an investor, IFC’s involvement with the Issuer and the Guarantor or IFC’s investment 

decision about the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Group or the Notes, and each investor making an 

investment in the Notes should make its own independent investment decision.” 

 

12. The section entitled “Investment Considerations – Investment considerations relating to the 

Programme and the Securities generally – Limited liquidity of the Securities issued under the 

Programme.” appearing on page 26 of the Information Memorandum shall be deemed to be 

supplemented with the following:  

 

“The liquidity of any trading market for the Notes will depend on the number of holders of the 

Notes. The investment by IFC (see “Subscription, Purchase and Distribution – Investment by 

IFC and ESG Consultation”) constitutes a significant portion of the Notes, and this may, subject 

to IFC’s discretion to trade the Notes, affect the extent to which the Notes may trade. The lack 

of a liquid, active trading market for the Notes may adversely affect the price of the Notes or 

may otherwise impede a Noteholder’s ability to dispose of the Notes.” 

 

13. The section entitled “Investment Considerations – Investment considerations relating to the 

Programme and the Securities generally – Application of Singapore insolvency and related laws 

to the Relevant Issuer and the Guarantor may result in a material adverse effect on the 

Securityholders.” appearing on pages 32 to 33 of the Information Memorandum shall be deleted 

in its entirety and substituted therefor with the following:  

 

“Application of Singapore insolvency and related laws to the Relevant Issuer and the Guarantor 

may result in a material adverse effect on the Securityholders. 

 

There can be no assurance that the Relevant Issuer and/or the Guarantor will not become 

bankrupt, unable to pay its debts or insolvent or be the subject of judicial management, 

schemes of arrangement, winding-up or liquidation orders or other insolvency-related 

proceedings or procedures. In the event of an insolvency or near insolvency of the Relevant 

Issuer and/or the Guarantor, the application of certain provisions of Singapore insolvency and 

related laws may have a material adverse effect on the Securityholders. Without being 

exhaustive, below are some matters that could have a material adverse effect on the 

Securityholders. 

 

Where the Relevant Issuer or the Guarantor is insolvent or close to insolvent and the Relevant 

Issuer or the Guarantor (as the case may be) undergoes certain insolvency procedures, there 

may be a moratorium against actions and proceedings which may apply in the case of judicial 

management, schemes of arrangement and/or winding-up in relation to the Relevant Issuer or 

the Guarantor (as the case may be). It may also be possible that if a company related to the 
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Relevant Issuer or the Guarantor (as the case may be) proposes a creditor scheme of 

arrangement and obtains an order for a moratorium, the Relevant Issuer or the Guarantor (as 

the case may be) may also seek a moratorium even if the Relevant Issuer or the Guarantor (as 

the case may be) is not in itself proposing a scheme of arrangement. These moratoriums can 

be lifted with court permission and in the case of judicial management, with the consent of the 

judicial manager or with court permission. Accordingly, if for instance there is any need for the 

Trustee to bring an action against the Relevant Issuer or the Guarantor (as the case may be), 

the need to obtain court permission or the judicial manager’s consent may result in delays in 

being able to bring or continue legal proceedings that may be necessary in the process of 

recovery. 

 

Further, Securityholders may be made subject to a binding scheme of arrangement where the 

majority in number representing 75% in value of creditors and the court approve such scheme. 

In respect of company-initiated creditor schemes of arrangement, there are cram-down 

provisions that may apply to a dissenting class of creditors. The court may, notwithstanding a 

single class of dissenting creditors, approve a scheme provided an overall majority in number 

representing 75% in value of the creditors meant to be bound by the scheme have agreed to it 

and provided that the scheme does not unfairly discriminate and is fair and equitable to each 

dissenting class and the court is of the view that it is appropriate to approve the scheme. In 

such scenarios, Securityholders may be bound by a scheme of arrangement to which they may 

have dissented.  

 

The Insolvency, Restructuring and Dissolution Act 2018 (Act 40 of 2018) (the “IRD Act”) was 

passed in Parliament on 1 October 2018 and came into force on 30 July 2020. The IRD Act 

includes a prohibition against terminating, amending or claiming an accelerated payment or 

forfeiture of the term under, any agreement (including a security agreement) with a company 

that commences certain insolvency or rescue proceedings (and before the conclusion of such 

proceedings), by reason only that the proceedings are commenced or that the company is 

insolvent. This prohibition is not expected to apply to any contract or agreement that is, or that 

is directly connected with, the Securities. However, it may apply to related contracts that are 

not found to be directly connected with the Securities.” 

 

14. The section entitled “Investment Considerations – Investment considerations relating to the 

Programme and the Securities generally” appearing on pages 26 to 33 of the Information 

Memorandum shall be deemed to be supplemented with the following: 

 

“The Notes may not be a suitable investment for all investors seeking exposure to “Green”, 

“Social”, “Sustainable”, “Sustainability-linked”, “Transition” or equivalently labelled bonds, 

underlying assets with sustainability characteristics or bonds with any binding or non-binding 

legal standards regarding sustainability performance. 

 

Sembcorp Industries has developed the Sembcorp Sustainable Financing Framework (as set 

out in Schedule 3 to the Pricing Supplement and as may be updated or amended from time to 

time, the “Sembcorp Sustainable Financing Framework”), which underscores the Group’s 

intention to undertake sustainability-linked transactions. Although the Notes are sustainability-

linked, given the condition that the Interest Rate relating to the Notes may be subject to an 

upward adjustment in the event that the Sustainability Performance Target is not met, as set 

out in the Pricing Supplement, the Notes may not satisfy an investor’s requirements or any 

future legal, quasi-legal or other standards for investment in assets with sustainability 
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characteristics. Further, if the Sustainability Performance Target is not met, this may have a 

material adverse effect on the value of the Notes. 

 
In addition, whether the Interest Rate relating to the Notes is adjusted upwards depends on the 

definition by the Relevant Issuer and the Guarantor of the term “greenhouse gas (“GHG”) 

Emissions Intensity”, which may be inconsistent with investor requirements or expectations or 

other definitions relevant to GHG emissions intensity. Neither the Relevant Issuer nor the 

Guarantor has obtained or will obtain third-party analysis of the definition of GHG Emissions 

Intensity or how such definition relates to any sustainability related standards, other than the 

External Verifier’s confirmation of the GHG Emissions Intensity, according to the Relevant 

Issuer’s and the Guarantor’s definition thereof.  

 

Furthermore, no Event of Default shall occur under the Notes, nor will the Relevant Issuer or 

the Guarantor be required to repurchase or redeem the Notes, if the Sustainability Performance 

Target is not met. Although the Relevant Issuer and/or the Guarantor intends to report 

periodically on the selected Key Performance Indicators (as defined in the Sembcorp 

Sustainable Financing Framework) and Sustainability Performance Target, failure of such 

reporting would not in and of itself be a breach of obligations under the Notes, nor would the 

Relevant Issuer or the Guarantor be obliged to repurchase or redeem the Notes. 

 

While the Relevant Issuer has agreed to allocate proceeds equivalent to the aggregate principal 

amount of IFC’s investment in the Notes towards the financing or refinancing of certain of the 

Group’s projects that can meet certain ESG standards applicable to IFC’s investments (see 

“Use of Proceeds”), it would not be an event of default or potential event of default with respect 

to the Notes if (i) the Relevant Issuer were to fail to use the proceeds in the manner specified 

in the Pricing Supplement and/or (ii) the Notes were to fail to meet the investment conditions of 

certain environmentally focused investors. Furthermore, any monitoring, guidance or 

assistance provided by IFC, other investors or their respective agents to the Relevant Issuer 

and/or the Guarantor does not, in any case, ensure that the Relevant Issuer and/or the 

Guarantor will comply with the applicable ESG standards. IFC has no duty to any investor or 

any other party to ensure such compliance and the Relevant Issuer and the Guarantor remain 

solely responsible for compliance with these standards. Any failure by the Relevant Issuer to 

use the net proceeds from the Notes in such manner or to meet or continue to meet such 

investment conditions with respect to such Notes may have a material adverse effect on the 

value of the Notes and/or may have consequences for certain investors with portfolio mandates 

to invest in assets with sustainability characteristics (which consequences may include the need 

to sell the Notes as a result of the Notes not falling within the investor's investment conditions 

or mandate). 

 

Although the Relevant Issuer and the Guarantor target to reduce the Group’s GHG Emissions 

Intensity, there can be no assurance of the extent to which they will be successful in doing so 

or that any future investments they make in furtherance of such targets will meet investor 

expectations, or any binding or non-binding legal standards regarding sustainability 

performance, whether by any present or future applicable law or regulations or by their own by-

laws or other governing rules or investment portfolio mandates, in particular with regard to any 

direct or indirect environmental, sustainability or social impact.  

 

As such, the Notes may not be a suitable investment for all investors seeking exposure to 

“Green”, “Social”, “Sustainable”, “Sustainability-linked”, “Transition” or equivalently labelled 
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bonds, or underlying assets with sustainability characteristics or any binding or non-binding 

legal standards regarding sustainability performance of any assets underlying the Notes.  

 

Any such failure to meet investor expectations or any standards regarding sustainability 

performance may have a material adverse effect on the value of the Notes and/or result in 

adverse consequences for certain investors with mandates to invest in securities to be used for 

a particular purpose. 

 

The Notes are not being marketed as “Green”, “Social”, “Sustainable”, “Sustainability-linked”, 

“Transition” or equivalently labelled bonds as the net proceeds of the issue of the Notes will be 

used for the Group’s general corporate purposes and to refinance the existing debt of the 

Group. 

 

The Notes are not being marketed as “Green”, “Social”, “Sustainable”, “Sustainability-linked”, 

“Transition” or equivalently labelled bonds given that the net proceeds will be used for general 

corporate purposes of the Group and to refinance the existing debt of the Group, and, save as 

set out in the section entitled “Use of Proceeds”, will not be allocated specifically to projects or 

business activities meeting environmental or sustainability criteria, or be subject to any other 

limitations associated with “Green”, “Social”, “Sustainable”, “Sustainability-linked”, “Transition” 

or equivalently labelled bonds.  

 

In addition, whether the Interest Rate relating to the Notes is adjusted upwards will depend on 

the Relevant Issuer and the Guarantor achieving, or not achieving, the Sustainability 

Performance Target, which may be inconsistent with or insufficient to satisfy investor 

requirements or expectations. Prospective investors in the Notes should have regard to the 

information set out herein and must determine for themselves the relevance of such information 

for the purpose of any investment in the Notes, together with any other investigation such 

investor deems necessary. 

 

There is currently no market consensus on what precise attributes are required for a particular 

project, activity or performance target to be defined as “Green”, “Social”, “Sustainable”, 

“Sustainability-linked” or “Transition”, and therefore no assurance is or can be given to investors 

by the Relevant Issuer, the Guarantor, the Dealers, DNV Business Assurance Singapore Pte. 

Ltd. or the External Verifier that the Notes will meet any or all investor expectations regarding 

environmental or social performance, the Notes or the Relevant Issuer’s and the Guarantor's 

Sustainability Performance Target qualifying as “Green”, “Social”, “Sustainable”, 

“Sustainability-linked” or “Transition” or that any adverse environmental, social and/or other 

impacts will not occur in connection with the Relevant Issuer and the Guarantor striving to 

achieve the Sustainability Performance Target or the use of the net proceeds from the offering 

of Notes. 

 

Risks associated with third-party opinions and reports issued in connection with the Notes. 

 
DNV Business Assurance Singapore Pte. Ltd. was engaged to provide the Second Party 

Opinion (as defined in the Sembcorp Sustainable Financing Framework) confirming the 

alignment of the Sembcorp Sustainable Financing Framework with the Sustainability-Linked 

Bond Principles 2020, published by the International Capital Market Association (ICMA), and 

the Sustainability-Linked Loan Principles 2021, published by the Loan Market Association 

(LMA), the Loan Syndications and Trading Association (LSTA) and the Asia Pacific Loan 

Market Association (APLMA). An External Verifier will be engaged to issue an Assurance 
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Report on an annual basis, verifying SCI’s performance of the selected Key Performance 

Indicators at the relevant reference date. 

 

The Second Party Opinion and the Assurance Reports, and any other third party opinion, 

certification or validation which may be obtained in respect of the Notes and/or the Sembcorp 

Sustainable Financing Framework, may provide an opinion on certain environmental, social, 

sustainability and related considerations but is not intended to address any credit, market or 

other aspects of an investment in the Notes including, without limitation, market price, 

marketability, investor preference or suitability of the Notes.  

 

No assurance or representation is given by the Relevant Issuer, the Guarantor, the Dealers, 

the Trustee or the Agents as to the suitability or reliability for any purpose whatsoever of any 

opinion, certification or validation of any third party (whether or not solicited by the Relevant 

Issuer or the Guarantor) which may be made available in connection with the Notes. For the 

avoidance of doubt, any such opinion, certification or validation is not incorporated in the 

Information Memorandum or the Pricing Supplement. 

 

Any such opinion, certification or validation is not, nor should be deemed to be, a 

recommendation by the Relevant Issuer, the Guarantor, the Dealers, the Trustee, the Agents 

or any other person to buy, sell or hold the Notes and is current only as of the date it was issued. 

Noteholders have no recourse against the Relevant Issuer, the Guarantor, the Dealers or the 

provider of any such opinion, certification or validation for the contents of any such opinion, 

certification or validation, which is only current as at the date it was initially issued. Prospective 

investors must determine for themselves the relevance of any such opinion, certification or 

validation and/or the information contained therein and/or the provider of such opinion, 

certification or validation for the purpose of any investment in the Notes. 

 

As at the date of the Pricing Supplement, the providers of such opinions, certifications or 

validations are not subject to any specific regulatory or other regime or oversight. Any 

withdrawal of any such opinion, certification or validation, failure to provide any such opinion, 

certification or validation or the provision of an opinion or statement that the Group is not 

complying in whole or in part with any subject matter of the opinion, certification or validation 

may have a material adverse effect on the value of the Notes and/or result in adverse 

consequences for certain investors with mandates to invest in securities to be used for a 

particular purpose. 

 

Achieving the Sustainability Performance Target or any similar sustainability performance 

targets will require the Group to expend significant resources, while not meeting any such 

targets would result in increased interest payments and could expose the Group to reputational 

risks. 

 

Achieving the Sustainability Performance Target will require the Group to reduce the GHG 

Emissions Intensity. As a result, achieving the Sustainability Performance Target or any similar 

sustainability performance targets the Group may choose to include in future financings or other 

arrangements will require the Group to expend significant resources. 

 

In addition, if the Group does not achieve the Sustainability Performance Target or any such 

similar sustainability performance targets it may choose to include in any future financings, this 

would not only result in increased interest payments under the Notes or, as the case may be, 

such other relevant financing arrangements, but could also harm the Group’s reputation, the 
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consequences of which could, in each case, have a material adverse effect on the Group’s 

business, prospects, financial condition or its results of operations. 

 

The Group calculates and reports its selected Key Performance Indicators based on certain 

standards and guidelines which may change over time, which may affect the way in which it 

calculates its selected Key Performance Indicators. 

 

The Group calculates its selected Key Performance Indicators internally based on broadly 

accepted standards and guidelines. For example, the applicable standards and guidelines in 

respect of the GHG Emissions Intensity are based on the GHG Protocol and Global Reporting 

Initiative (GRI) Standards. The Group’s performance of the selected Key Performance 

Indicators is expected to be assessed externally and independently by the External Verifier. 

 

These standards and guidelines continue to be reviewed by expert groups and include 

contributions from industry bodies, which may change going forward. There is no assurance 

that the way in which the Group calculates and reports its selected Key Performance Indicators 

will not change over time.” 

 

15. The section entitled “Sembcorp Industries Ltd – History and Background” appearing on page 

113 of the Information Memorandum shall be deleted in its entirety and substituted therefor with 

the following: 

 

“1.   HISTORY AND BACKGROUND 

 

Sembcorp Industries was incorporated in Singapore on 20 May 1998. Soon after, on 3 

October 1998, Singapore Technologies Industrial Corporation and Sembawang 

Corporation were merged under Sembcorp Industries and became its wholly-owned 

subsidiaries. From 16 businesses, Sembcorp Industries underwent a decades-long 

process to sharpen its focus to three core businesses: Energy, Marine and Urban. Then 

in September 2020, Sembcorp Industries and its marine subsidiary Sembcorp Marine 

demerged. This resulted in Sembcorp Industries becoming a focused energy and 

sustainable solutions company. 

 

Sembcorp Industries has a balanced energy portfolio of over 12,800 MW of power, with 

more than 3,300 MW of renewable energy capacity comprising solar, wind and energy 

storage globally. It also has a proven track record of transforming raw land into 

sustainable urban developments, with a project portfolio spanning over 12,000 

hectares across Asia. 

 

In May 2021, Sembcorp Industries unveiled a strategic plan to transform its portfolio 

from brown to green, with a vision to be a leading provider of sustainable solutions. 

This strategic plan is underpinned by the following targets: 

 

More sustainable 

 

By 2025, Sembcorp Industries aims for its sustainable solutions portfolio to comprise 

70% of the Group’s net profit. In 2020, the sustainable solutions portfolio contributed to 

around 40% of the Group’s net profit. By 2025, its renewable energy portfolio is 

expected to achieve a compounded annual growth rate (“CAGR”) of 30% and its 

integrated urban solutions portfolio a CAGR of 10%.  
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More renewables  

 

By 2025, Sembcorp Industries aims to quadruple its gross installed renewable energy 

capacity to 10 gigawatts (“GW”). In 2020, its gross installed renewable energy capacity 

(comprising wind, solar and energy storage) was 2.6GW. 

 

More sustainable urban developments 

 

By 2025, Sembcorp Industries aims to triple its Urban business’ land sales to 500 

hectares. In 2020, land sales amounted to 172 hectares. 

 

Lower carbon emissions 

 

By 2025, Sembcorp Industries aims to reduce its greenhouse gas emissions (“GHG”) 

intensity to 0.40 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent (“tCO2e”) per megawatt hour 

(“tCO2e/MWh”) from 0.54 tCO2e/MWh in 2020. In addition, Sembcorp Industries aims 

to halve GHG emissions by 2030 (from a 2010 baseline of 5.4 million tCO2e) and deliver 

net-zero emissions by 2050. Sembcorp Industries also commits to not investing in new 

coal-fired energy assets. 

 

Sembcorp Industries has total assets of over S$13 billion as at 30 June 2021 and over 

5,000 employees. Listed on the Mainboard of the SGX-ST, it is a component stock of 

the Straits Times Index and sustainability indices including the FTSE4Good Index and 

the iEdge SG ESG indices.” 

 

16. The section entitled “Sembcorp Industries Ltd – Group Structure” appearing on pages 114 to 

115 of the Information Memorandum shall be deleted in its entirety and substituted therefor with 

the following: 

 

“2.   GROUP STRUCTURE 

 

ENERGY 

 

Sembcorp Utilities 100% 

 

Singapore 

Sembcorp Cogen 100% 

Sembcorp Power 100% 

Sembcorp Gas 100% 

Sembcorp NEWater 100% 

Sembcorp Solar Singapore 100% 

Sembcorp Floating Solar Singapore 100% 

Changi Mega Solar 100% 

Sembcorp Fuels 100% 

Sembcorp Fuels (Singapore) 100% 

Sembcorp Energy Markets 100% 

Sembcorp RECS 100% 

Sembcorp Energy Vietnam 100% 

Sembcorp Renewable Energy Vietnam 100% 
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Sembcorp Solar Vietnam 100% 

Sembcorp Smart Energy Solutions Vietnam 100% 

Sembcorp Energy China 100% 

Sembcorp Project Engineering Co 100% 

 

China 

Sembcorp (China) Holding Co 100% 

Shanghai Cao Jing Co-generation Co 30% 

Zhangjiagang Free Trade Zone Sembcorp Water Co 80% 

Zhangjiagang Free Trade Zone Sembcorp Reclaimed Water Co 80% 

Sembcorp Qidong Water Co 96.45% 

Sembcorp Nanjing SUIWU Co 95% 

Sembcorp NCIP Water Co 95% 

Fuzhou Sembcorp Water Co 72% 

Guohua AES (Huanghua) Wind Power Co 49% 

Sembcorp Changzhi Water Co 100% 

Sembcorp Tianjin Lingang Water Co 90% 

Sembcorp Sanhe Yanjiao Water Co 94.34% 

Guohua Sembcorp (Chenba’erhu) Wind Power Co 49% 

Guohua Sembcorp (Hulunbeier) Wind Power Co 49% 

Guohua Sembcorp (Xinba’erhu) Wind Power Co 49% 

Sembcorp Shenyang Water Co 80% 

Sembcorp Qitaihe Water Co 90.91% 

ChongQing SongZao Sembcorp Electric Power Co 49% 

Sembcorp Qinzhou Water Co 80% 

Sembcorp Energy (Shanghai) Holding Co 100% 

Sembcorp WaterTech (Nanjing) Co 100% 

 

India 

Sembcorp India 100% 

Sembcorp Energy India 100% 

Sembcorp Green Infra 100% 

 

Indonesia 

PT Adhya Tirta Batam 50% 

PT Adhya Tirta Sriwijaya 40% 

 

Myanmar 

Sembcorp Myingyan Power Co 100% 

 

Philippines 

Subic Water and Sewerage Co 30% 

 

Vietnam 

Phu My 3 BOT Power Co 66.67% 

Sembcorp Energy Vietnam Co 100% 

Sembcorp Solar Vietnam Co 100% 

Vietnam-Singapore Smart Energy Solutions Joint Stock Company 44% 

 

Malaysia 
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Sembcorp Solar Solutions Sdn Bhd 100% 

 
Bangladesh 

Sembcorp North-West Power Co  71% 

 

Oman 

Sembcorp Salalah Power and Water Co 40% 

Sembcorp Salalah O&M Services Co 70% 

 

UAE 

Emirates Sembcorp Water & Power Co 40% 

Sembcorp Gulf O&M Co 100% 

 

UK 

Sembcorp Utilities (UK) 100% 

Merseyside Energy Recovery 40% 

Sembcorp Energy UK 100% 

UK Power Reserve 100% 

 

Sembcorp Environment 100%  

 

Singapore 

SembWaste 100% 

 

URBAN 

 

Sembcorp Development 100% 

 

Vietnam 

Vietnam Singapore Industrial Park JV Co 49.26% 

Vietnam Singapore Industrial Park & Township Development Joint Stock Co 46.48% 

VSIP Bac Ninh Co 46.48% 

VSIP Hai Phong Co 46.48% 

VSIP Quang Ngai Co 49.26% 

VSIP Hai Duong Co 46.48% 

VSIP Nghe An Co 49.26% 

VSIP-Sembcorp Gateway Development Co 51.56% 

Hai Phong Lakeside Garden Development Co 100% 

Sembcorp Infra Services Hai Phong 52.50% 

Sembcorp Infra Services Hai Duong 52.50% 

Becamex Binh Dinh Joint Stock Co 14.79% 

Vietnam-Singapore Smart Energy Solutions Joint Stock Co 9.85% 

 

China 

Wuxi-Singapore Industrial Park Development Co 45.36% 

Sino-Singapore (Chengdu) Innovation Park Development Co 10%  

Sino-Singapore Nanjing Eco Hi-tech Island Development Co 21.50% 

Nanjing Riverside Quay Co 100% 
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Indonesia 

Kawasan Industri Kendal 49% 

 

Myanmar 

Myanmar Singapore (Hlegu) Industrial Park JV Co 50.60% 

 

Singapore 

Sembcorp Properties 100% 

Sembcorp Properties (China) 100% 

Sembcorp Properties (Vietnam) 100% 

Sembcorp Infra Holdings 70% 

Sembcorp Infra Services 52.50% 

Sembcorp Development Indonesia 100% 

Sembcorp Development India 100% 

Sembcorp Development Vietnam 100% 

Sembcorp Parks Management 75% 

 

OTHER BUSINESSES 

 

Singapore Precision Industries / Singapore Mint 100% 

Sembcorp Specialised Construction 100% 

 

Notes: 

•  This list of companies is not exhaustive. 

•  The Energy business also includes certain utilities operations under SCI. 

•  Figures reflect shareholdings as at 30 June 2021. 

•  Shareholding figures for entities listed under Sembcorp Utilities, Sembcorp 

Environment and Sembcorp Development reflect stakes held by the above companies 

in these entities.” 

 

17. The section entitled “Sembcorp Industries Ltd – Key Businesses – Energy” appearing on pages 

116 to 117 of the Information Memorandum shall be deleted in its entirety and substituted 

therefor with the following: 

 

“(a)  Energy 

 

Sembcorp Utilities is a leading energy player with a balanced portfolio of over 12,800 

MW of power, of which more than 3,300 MW is renewable energy capacity comprising 

wind, solar and energy storage. It also manages over 8.2 million cubic metres of water 

and wastewater treatment capacity per day. Sembcorp Utilities pioneered the provision 

of one-stop centralised utilities on Jurong Island, Singapore’s energy and chemicals 

hub providing energy, water and on-site logistics to multinational petrochemical and 

chemical companies. It is a key player in Singapore’s gas value chain, offering gas 

sourcing, importation and trading solutions. It is Singapore’s first commercial importer 

and retailer of natural gas and the first to import liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) cargo 

under Singapore’s Spot Import Policy. 

 

From its roots on Jurong Island, Sembcorp Utilities has grown to be an established 

energy player in the Asian region, building a strong track record with proven capabilities 

in executing and operating large-scale power projects. It has also leveraged on its 
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expertise to deliver solutions that support energy transition. Today, Sembcorp Utilities 

is one of Singapore’s largest home-grown renewable energy players, operating an 

international portfolio of wind, solar and energy storage assets. It is a leading 

renewable energy player in Singapore with 372 MW-peak of solar capacity in operation 

and under development. It is a leading wind power developer in India, operating a 

portfolio of high-quality wind and solar power assets of over 1,700 MW and developing 

another 400 MW. In the UK, it is currently operating one of the largest energy storage 

portfolios. It has 60 megawatt-hour (“MWh”) battery storage systems in operation and 

another 60 MWh under development. 

 

Sembcorp Utilities also operates conventional power generation assets in nine 

countries with a combined generation capacity of approximately 9,500 MW. This 

includes a portfolio of small-scale, rapid-response gas engines in the UK that helps to 

bridge supply gaps from the intermittency of renewable power sources. In the water 

sector, Sembcorp Utilities provides specialised total water and wastewater treatment 

solutions. From specialised industrial wastewater treatment and water reclamation, to 

desalination and the supply of potable and industrial water, it offers innovative solutions 

to even the most challenging water needs of industries and water-stressed regions. 

The business is able to integrate water supply, wastewater treatment and water 

reclamation in a closed “loop”, minimising liquid discharge and conserving water 

resources.” 

 

18. The section “Sembcorp Industries Ltd” appearing on pages 113 to 122 of the Information 

Memorandum shall be deemed to be supplemented with the following: 

 

“6.   RECENT DEVELOPMENTS 

 

Sembcorp Marine Rights Issue and Demerger 

 

On 8 June 2020, Sembcorp Industries and Sembcorp Marine announced the proposed 

recapitalisation of Sembcorp Marine through a S$2.1 billion renounceable rights issue 

by Sembcorp Marine (the “Rights Issue”), followed by a proposed demerger of the two 

companies via a distribution in specie of Sembcorp Industries’ stake in the recapitalised 

Sembcorp Marine to the shareholders of Sembcorp Industries (the “Demerger”, and 

together with the Rights Issue, the “Transaction”). The aim of the Transaction was to 

strengthen the financial positions of both companies and to unlock shareholder value. 

In addition, the Transaction enabled Sembcorp Industries and Sembcorp Marine to 

better focus on their respective industries by giving them greater flexibility to pursue 

their own sustainable growth paths following the Demerger.  

 

The Rights Issue 

 

In connection with the Rights Issue, Sembcorp Industries gave an irrevocable 

undertaking (the “Irrevocable Undertaking”) to subscribe for its pro rata entitlement 

of S$1.27 billion and to take up an additional S$0.23 billion if necessary, resulting in a 

total commitment of up to S$1.5 billion under the Rights Issue. 
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The Rights Issue was completed on 11 September 2020 where 10,462,690,870 rights 

shares in Sembcorp Marine were allotted and issued to the respective subscribers. 

Pursuant to the Irrevocable Undertaking, 7,500,000,000 rights shares were allotted and 

issued to Sembcorp Industries, and the subscription moneys for the Rights Issue 

aggregating S$1.5 billion were set off against the S$1.5 billion subordinated loan 

extended by Sembcorp Industries to Sembcorp Marine in June 2019.  

 

The Demerger 

 

After the completion of the Rights Issue, Sembcorp Industries distributed its stake in 

the recapitalised Sembcorp Marine (including the 7,500,000,000 rights shares that had 

been allotted and issued to it under the Rights Issue) to the shareholders of Sembcorp 

Industries on a pro rata basis as dividends. This resulted in the demerger of Sembcorp 

Marine from Sembcorp Industries. Accordingly, Sembcorp Marine ceased to be a part 

of the Group.” 

 

19. The section entitled “Sembcorp Financial Services Pte. Ltd. – Financial Summary of SFS” 

appearing on pages 123 to 124 of the Information Memorandum shall be deleted in its entirety 

and substituted therefor with the following: 

 

“3 Financial Summary of SFS 

 

(i)   A summary of the audited income statement of SFS for the years ended 31 December 

2018, 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020, which have been prepared in 

accordance with SFRS(I), is set out as follows: 

 

Income Statement 

 

 Audited 

 Financial Year Ended 31 December 

 2020 2019 2018* 

 <---------------------------(S$’000) ---------------------------> 

Revenue 135,516 141,377 93,309 

Cost of sales (123,514) (122,563) (79,624) 

Gross profit 12,002 18,814 13,685 

Other operating income 10,677 821 - 

Other operating expenses (15,977) (6,320) (4,731) 

Profit before tax 6,702 13,315 8,954 

Tax expense (1,212) (2,713) (1,601) 

Profit for the year 5,490 10,602 7,353 

 

Note: 

*  Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with current 

period presentation.  

 

(ii) A summary of the audited balance sheet of SFS as at 31 December 2018, 31 

December 2019 and 31 December 2020, which have been prepared in accordance 

with SFRS(I), is set out as follows: 
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Balance Sheet 

 

 Audited 

 Financial Year Ended 31 December 

 2020 2019 2018* 

 <---------------------------(S$’000) ---------------------------> 

Non-current assets 3,971,057 3,791,269 2,982,423 

Current assets 659,249 1,520,833 780,262 

Total assets 4,630,306 5,312,102 3,762,685 

 

Share capital 15,000 15,000 15,000 

Other reserves (9,383) (4,709) (269) 

Revenue reserve 44,730 39,240 28,638 

Total equity 50,347 49,531 43,369 

Non-current liabilities 3,448,506 2,937,037 2,425,329 

Current liabilities 1,131,453 2,325,534 1,293,987 

Total liabilities 4,579,959 5,262,571 3,719,316 

Total equity and liabilities 4,630,306 5,312,102 3,762,685 

 

Note: 

*  Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with current 

period presentation.” 

 

20. The section entitled “Use of Proceeds” appearing on page 125 of the Information Memorandum 

shall be deleted in its entirety and substituted therefor with the following: 

 

“The proceeds arising from the issue of the Notes (after deducting issue expenses) will be used 

for the purposes of financing the general corporate working capital requirements of the Group 

and/or refinancing the existing debt of the Group. The principal amount of IFC’s investment in 

the Notes shall be used towards the financing or refinancing of the Group’s renewable energy, 

or potentially, other sustainable projects in key markets such as India and Vietnam that can 

meet certain ESG standards applicable to IFC’s investments (“Eligible Projects”) (see 

“Subscription, Purchase and Distribution – Investment by IFC and ESG Consultation” and 

“Investment Considerations – Investment considerations relating to the Programme and the 

Securities generally – The Notes may not be a suitable investment for all investors seeking 

exposure to “Green”, “Social”, “Sustainable”, “Sustainability-linked”, “Transition” or equivalently 

labelled bonds, underlying assets with sustainability characteristics or bonds with any binding 

or non-binding legal standards regarding sustainability performance”).” 

 

21. The section entitled “Subscription, Purchase and Distribution” appearing on pages 131 to 133 

of the Information Memorandum shall be deemed to be supplemented with the following: 

 

“Investment by IFC and ESG Consultation  

 

IFC has agreed to subscribe for S$150,000,000 of the Notes. IFC is an independent third party 

of the Group. IFC is a member of the World Bank Group and is established by its Articles of 

Agreement among 184 member countries. IFC fosters sustainable economic growth in 

developing countries by financing private sector investment, mobilising capital in the 
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international financial markets, and providing advisory services to businesses and 

governments. 

 

The Guarantor and IFC have entered into a mandate letter (the “Mandate Letter”) under which 

IFC will, among others, have certain of its expenses reimbursed and in certain circumstances 

be indemnified by the Issuer and the Guarantor in connection with its potential investment in 

the Notes and for providing certain support to the Guarantor in connection with the development 

of the Sembcorp Sustainable Financing Framework and sustainability performance targets. 

 

In addition, in connection with IFC’s potential investment and continuing work with the Issuer 

and the Guarantor to review the compliance of Eligible Projects with IFC’s ESG standards and 

to consult on ESG programmes with the Issuer and the Guarantor, the Issuer and the Guarantor 

have entered into a policy agreement (the “Policy Agreement”) pursuant to which, among 

others, the Issuer and the Guarantor will make certain representations and covenants with 

respect to their compliance with IFC’s investment standards, including reporting and 

compliance requirements as to any Eligible Projects, which will terminate if, among others, IFC 

is not issued any Notes. In the event that the Policy Agreement is terminated, IFC will cease to 

review the compliance of Eligible Projects with IFC’s ESG standards. 

 

In connection with the Mandate Letter and the Policy Agreement, the Issuer and the Guarantor 

will pay a fee to IFC in consideration of, among others, IFC’s investment, IFC’s support in 

connection with the development of the Sembcorp Sustainable Financing Framework and 

sustainability performance targets and (if applicable) IFC’s continuing work with the Issuer and 

the Guarantor to review the compliance of Eligible Projects with IFC’s ESG standards and to 

consult on ESG programmes with the Issuer and the Guarantor. 

 

Investors should not place any reliance on IFC’s participation in the Notes as an investor, IFC’s 

support and consultation or IFC’s investment decision about the Issuer, the Guarantor, the 

Group or the Notes, and each investor making an investment in the Notes should make its own 

independent investment decision. Any monitoring, guidance or assistance provided by IFC, 

other investors or their respective agents to the Issuer and/or the Guarantor does not, in any 

case, ensure that the Issuer and/or the Guarantor will comply with the applicable ESG 

standards. IFC has no duty to any investor or any other party to ensure such compliance and 

the Issuer and the Guarantor remain solely responsible for compliance with these standards.  

 

The terms of IFC’s investment will not restrict the ability of IFC to buy or sell any Notes in the 

future, or to buy Notes in any future tranches or series of notes issued under the Programme.” 

 

22. The paragraph 1 appearing in the section entitled “General Information – Information on 

Directors” appearing on page 134 of the Information Memorandum shall be deleted in its 

entirety and substituted therefor with the following: 

 

“1.  (a)   The name and position of each of the Directors of SCI are set out below: 

 

Name     Position 

Ang Kong Hua  Chairman, Non-executive &  

Independent Director 

Tham Kui Seng  Non-executive & Independent Director 

Ajaib Haridass  Non-executive & Independent Director  

Nicky Tan Ng Kuang  Non-executive & Independent Director 
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Yap Chee Keong  Non-executive & Independent Director 

Dr Josephine Kwa Lay Keng  Non-executive & Independent Director 

Nagi Hamiyeh  Non-executive & Non-independent Director 

Tow Heng Tan  Non-executive & Non-independent Director 

Lim Ming Yan Non-executive & Independent Director 

Wong Kim Yin  Group President & CEO 

 

(b)  The name and position of each of the Directors of SFS are set out below:  

 

Name      Position 

Eugene Cheng Chee Mun  Director  

Looi Lee Hwa     Director 

Foo Fei Voon     Director” 

 

23. The paragraphs 4 and 5 appearing in the section entitled “General Information – Share Capital” 

appearing on page 134 of the Information Memorandum shall be deleted in their entirety and 

substituted therefor with the following: 

 

“4.  The issued share capital of SCI as at 30 June 2021 is as follows: 

Share Designation Issued Share Capital 

(Number) (S$) 

Ordinary Shares 1,786,631,577 565,571,683 

The number of issued ordinary shares of SCI excludes 916,155 ordinary shares 

(S$1,612,666) held as treasury shares. 

 

5.  The issued share capital of SFS as at 30 June 2021 is as follows: 

Share Designation Issued Share Capital 

(Number) (S$) 

Ordinary Shares 15,000,000 15,000,000” 

 
24. The paragraph 6 appearing in the section entitled “General Information – Borrowings” 

appearing on pages 134 to 135 of the Information Memorandum shall be deleted in its entirety 

and substituted therefor with the following: 

 

“6.  Save as disclosed in the most recent audited accounts of SCI and SFS respectively, 

none of SCI, SFS or their respective subsidiaries has as at 31 December 2020 any 

other borrowings or indebtedness in the nature of borrowings including bank overdrafts 

and liabilities under acceptances (other than normal trading bills) or acceptance credits, 

mortgages, charges, hire purchase commitments, guarantees or other material 

contingent liabilities, other than borrowings in the ordinary course of business.” 

 

25. The paragraph 8 appearing in the section entitled “General Information – Changes in 

Accounting Policies” appearing on page 135 of the Information Memorandum shall be deleted 

in its entirety and substituted therefor with the following: 

 

“8.  There has been no significant change in the accounting policies of the Issuers or of the 

Guarantor since their respective audited accounts for the year ended 31 December 
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2020, except for the adoption of new and amended standards as set out in the 

published unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements of the Group 

for the half-year ended 30 June 2021.” 

 

26. The section entitled “General Information – Litigation” appearing on pages 135 to 136 of the 

Information Memorandum shall be deleted in its entirety and substituted therefor with the 

following: 

 

“9. Save as disclosed below and in this Information Memorandum, there are no legal, 

arbitration or administrative proceedings or prosecutions or investigations pending or 

threatened against the Issuers or the Guarantor or any of its subsidiaries, the outcome 

of which may have a material adverse effect on the financial position of the Issuers or 

on the Guarantor and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole: 

 

Legal Proceedings in respect of Divested Municipal Water Assets 

 

 In December 2018, the Group announced the completion of the sale by its wholly-

owned subsidiary Sembcorp Utilities (Netherlands) N.V. (“SUNNV”) of SUNNV’s 100% 

stake in Sembcorp Utilities South Africa (“SUSA”) and its 100% effective stake in 

Sembcorp Silulumanzi to South African Water Works Pty Ltd (the “Sale”). The Sale 

was subject to the consent (the “Municipality Consent”) of the Mbombela Local 

Municipality, South Africa and such Municipality Consent had been obtained prior to 

the completion of the Sale.  

 

In November 2020, the Group announced that the Municipality Consent had recently 

been challenged in the South African High Court by a party who had made an 

unsuccessful bid to become a local Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment 

minority shareholder in Sembcorp Silulumanzi (the “Proceedings”). Neither the Group 

nor any of its subsidiaries were parties to the Proceedings when they were launched in 

July 2019.  

 

One of the potential consequences of the Proceedings is that the completed Sale may 

be reversed and that the parties to the Sale would have to re-apply for the Municipal 

Consent. To protect its interests, the Group requested and has been granted approval 

by the South African High Court for SUNNV and SUSA to be joined as parties to the 

Proceedings.  

 

As at 31 August 2021, the Proceedings are still ongoing and the Group will make an 

appropriate announcement in the event of any material developments.” 

 

27. The paragraph 10 appearing in the section entitled “General Information – Material Adverse 

Change” appearing on page 136 of the Information Memorandum shall be deleted in its entirety 

and substituted therefor with the following: 

 

“10.  Save as disclosed in this Information Memorandum or in any public announcement by 

the Issuers and the Guarantor, there has been no material adverse change in the 

financial position or condition or business prospects of the Issuers or of the Guarantor 

since 31 December 2020 or the Issuers’ or the Guarantor’s publicly announced 

unaudited interim results or published financial statements, as the case may be.” 
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28. The following shall be deleted in their entirety: 

 

(i) the third paragraph and all references to “rigs” appearing in the section entitled 

“Investment Considerations – Investment considerations relating to the Group – The 

Group may be involved in legal and other proceedings from time to time.” appearing on 

page 15 of the Information Memorandum; 

 

(ii) the reference to “Brazil” in the second paragraph appearing in the section entitled 

“Investment Considerations – Investment considerations relating to the Group – The 

Group’s success in the future may depend on the successful implementation of its 

strategies.” appearing on page 19 of the Information Memorandum; 

 

(iii) the second and third paragraphs appearing in the section entitled “Investment 

Considerations – Investment considerations relating to the Group – The Guarantor 

relies on its investment income, including dividends and distributions from its 

subsidiaries, associated companies and joint ventures and proceeds from divestments, 

to meet its obligations, including obligations under the Guarantee.” appearing on page 

21 of the Information Memorandum; 

 

(iv) the first two sentences of the first paragraph appearing in the section entitled 

“Investment Considerations – Investment considerations relating to the Group – The 

Group may not be able to refinance its indebtedness and funds may not be available 

to the Group.” appearing on page 22 of the Information Memorandum;  

 

(v) the reference to “Brazilian Reals” in the first sentence appearing in the section entitled 

“Investment Considerations – Investment considerations relating to the Group – The 

Group is subject to foreign exchange rate fluctuations.” appearing on page 25 of the 

Information Memorandum; 

 

(vi) the paragraph (b) appearing in the section entitled “Sembcorp Industries Ltd – Key 

Businesses” appearing on page 116 of the Information Memorandum; and 

 

(vii) the section entitled “Sembcorp Industries Ltd – Key Businesses – Marine” appearing 

on page 117 of the Information Memorandum. 
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Renewable Energy Integrated Urban Solutions Conventional Energy

1. Introduction

Sembcorp Industries (Sembcorp) is a leading energy and urban solutions player, driven by our purpose to do good 
and play our part in building a sustainable future.

Leveraging our sector expertise and global track record, Sembcorp delivers innovative energy and urban solutions that 
support the energy transition and sustainable development.

By focusing on growing our renewables and integrated urban solutions businesses, we aim to transform our portfolio 
towards a greener future and be a leading provider of sustainable solutions. Sembcorp has a global energy portfolio 
and a proven track record of transforming raw land into sustainable urban developments across Asia.

Sembcorp is listed on the main board of the Singapore Exchange.

1.1 Sembcorp’s approach to sustainability

Sustainability is central to Sembcorp’s purpose and strategy. We believe we must be part of the sustainable 
development agenda, and have a responsibility to our stakeholders to provide solutions that create value and 
positive impact for society. By meeting the needs of society, while managing our material environmental, social, and 
governance (ESG) risks and opportunities, we believe that we will succeed as a business and provide our 
shareholders a sustainable return.

Sembcorp’s sustainability framework articulates three ambitions for the future and supports the UN Sustainable 
Development Goals (SDGs). We aim to:

 1) Enable a low-carbon and circular economy
            2) Empower people and communities
 3) Embed responsible business practices

▘Wind

▘Solar

▘Energy Storage Systems

▘Urban

▘Water

▘Waste & Waste-to-Resource

▘Power & Steam

▘Gas & Related Services

More information can be found on our website.
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The main duties of Sembcorp’s board of directors include providing leadership on Sembcorp’s overall strategy, which 
take into consideration our material sustainability issues. Sembcorp has a Sustainability Steering Committee (SSC), 
chaired by our Group President & CEO that provides strategic direction for managing sustainability-related risks and 
opportunities. The SSC provides updates to the Board via the Board Risk Committee. To ensure that sustainability is 
embedded into the business, ESG components are included in the performance scorecard of the Sembcorp 
leadership team.

Sembcorp is a signatory to the United Nations Global Compact (UNGC), a supporter of the Financial Stability Board’s 
Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosure (TCFD) and Carbon Pricing Leadership Coalition (CPLC). 
Information on our credentials can be viewed on the Memberships, Certifications and Ratings page of our website.

1.2 Strategic transformation of portfolio from brown to green

Our vision is to be a leading provider of sustainable solutions. In May 2021, we announced our strategic plan to 
transform our portfolio from brown to green, by focusing on growing our renewables and integrated urban 
solutions businesses. 

Our strategy addresses the megatrends of decarbonisation, electrification and urbanisation. These megatrends are 
global in nature and particularly pronounced in Asia. As the world transitions towards a low-carbon economy, the 
global energy mix will shift towards cleaner sources, with renewable energy dominating growth. By 2035, we expect 
half of global power generation to come from renewable sources. In Asia, we see Governments setting ambitious 
sustainability and green growth targets.

OUR PURPOSE

Sembcorp’s purpose and 
passion is to do good and 
play our part in building a 

sustainable future. Our 
vision is to be a leading 
provider of sustainable 
solutions - supporting 

development and creating 
value for our stakeholders 

and communities.
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MORE Sustainable

20252020

2.6

10
MORE
Renewables
Gross installed 
capacity, gigawatts

20252020

0.54
0.40

LOWER
Carbon Emissions
Emissions intensity, 
tCO2e/MWh

20252020

172

500MORE
Sustainable Urban
Developments
Land sales, hectares

Our transformation plan to support the global energy transition and sustainable development particularly in Asia is 
underpinned by clear targets.

 • More sustainable 
                By 2025, Sembcorp aims for our sustainable solutions portfolio to comprise 70% of the Group’s net
                profit, up from around 40% in 2020.
 • More renewable 
                By 2025, Sembcorp aims to quadruple our gross installed renewable energy capacity to 10GW, up       
                from 2.6GW at the end of 2020.
 • More sustainable urban development 
                By 2025, Sembcorp aims to triple land sales from our urban business to 500 hectares, up from 172
                hectares in 2020.
 • Lower carbon emissions
                By 2025, Sembcorp aims to reduce our greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions intensity to 0.40 tonnes of
                carbon dioxide equivalent per megawatt hour (tCO2e/MWh) from 0.54 tCO2e/MWh in 2020.

1 McKinsey Global Energy Perspective 2019, 2021
2 United Nations, Department of Economic and Social Affairs, Population Division (2018). World Urbanization Prospects: The 2018 Revision

Transforming our portfolio from Brown to Green

1 Percentage based on Net Profit excluding corporate costs and exceptional items. Sustainable Solutions include 
Renewables (wind, solar and energy storage) and Integrated Urban Solutions (urban, water, waste and waste-to-resource).

% Share of Net Profit from Sustainable Solutions1

Renewable energy to dominate 
in a decarbonised power sector

50% of global power generation 
to come from renewable sources 
by 20351

Growing electricity demand, 
driven by decarbonised road 
transport

Electricity demand will double 
by 2050, driven by the increase 
in demand for electric vehicles 
and electrification in buildings 
and industry1

Economic centre of gravity 
shifting to Asia

Asia’s urban population is 
forecasted to increase from 50% 
of total population in 2018 to 
66% in 20502

Decarbonisation Electrification Urbanisation

2020

40% 70%

2025
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5-year cumulative growth investment focuses on Renewables and Integrated Urban Solutions (2021 - 2025)

Core to our strategic plan is our commitment to climate action. The world is rapidly moving towards a low-carbon 
economy, creating significant disruption, risks and opportunities. Sembcorp understands that we have a 
responsibility to respond to climate change. 

Sembcorp was the first Singapore energy company to launch a comprehensive climate change strategy in 2018. As 
part of our strategic transformation plan, our Climate Action Plan 2021 stepped up our commitment to a low-carbon 
economy. In addition to the 2025 target to reduce GHG emissions intensity to 0.40tCO2e/MWh, we also made the 
following commitments.

 • By 2030, Sembcorp aims to reduce absolute GHG emissions to 2.7 million tCO2e
 • By 2050, Sembcorp aims to deliver net-zero emissions
 • Sembcorp commits to no new coal-fired energy asset investments

Sembcorp is committed to the UN SDGs. In line with our strategic focus, we have adopted SDG 7 (Affordable and 
Clean Energy) and SDG 13 (Climate Action) as our priority SDGs.

To support sustainable development and the global energy transition, and achieve our strategic targets, we expect 
to invest significantly in sustainable solutions to drive growth in the Renewables and Integrated Urban Solutions 
segments. 80% of the Group’s estimated total capital investment of S$5.5 billion for 2021 to 2025 is expected to 
be allocated to growth in the Renewables sector. In addition, the Group will manage our Conventional Energy assets 
to optimise or realise value, and explore optionality around them.

Integrated Urban
Solutions

Renewables
+7.4 GW gross

installed capacity

Business-As-Usual
investment

80%
10% ~S$5.5 bn

10%

Total investment
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1 Sustainability-Linked Bond Principles 2020: https://www.icmagroup.org/assets/documents/Regulatory/Green-Bonds/June-2020/Sustainability-Linked-Bond-
PrinciplesJune-2020-100620.pdf

2 Sustainability-Linked Loan Principles 2021: https://www.lma.eu.com/application/files/8416/2210/4806/Sustainability_Linked_Loan_Principles.pdf

With a vision to be a leading provider of sustainable solutions, Sembcorp aims to transform our portfolio from brown 
to green and support the global energy transition and sustainable development. To demonstrate our commitment 
to a more sustainable future and to support our strategic transformation plan, we believe that it is important to 
integrate sustainability across the financing tools of the company. With the intention to undertake 
sustainability-linked transactions, Sembcorp has established this Sustainable Financing Framework (Framework).    

The Framework outlines the Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) and Sustainability Performance Targets (SPTs) for 
Sembcorp’s Sustainable-Linked Transactions (SLTs). Sembcorp intends to enter into multiple SLTs under this 
Framework, including but not limited to the products listed below:

 • Sustainability-Linked Bonds (SLBs);
 • Sustainability-Linked Loans (SLLs);
 • or any other Sustainability-Linked instruments (e.g. commercial paper, derivative instruments or any
               other form of financial instruments available).

For the avoidance of doubt, the SLTs may be in any currency, tenor or with other terms and conditions, including 
covenants, arising from the Group’s financing strategy as well as the outcome of the commercial discussions 
between the Group and its lenders and investors. The SLTs may also be undertaken by any subsidiary of the Group. 

2. Rationale for establishing a Sustainable Financing Framework

This Framework has been established in accordance with the Sustainability-Linked Bond Principles (SLBP) 2020 as 
administered by ICMA1.

The Framework has the following five components:

 1) Selection of Key Performance Indicators
 2) Calibration of Sustainability Performance Targets
 3) Financial characteristics
 4) Reporting
 5) Verification

Substantially similar core components are outlined under the Sustainability-Linked Loan Principles 2021, 
administered by Loan Syndications and Trading Association (LSTA), Asia Pacific Loan Market Association (APLMA) 
and Loan Market Association (LMA) in connection with sustainability-linked loans2.

This Framework covers Sustainability‐Linked Bonds, Sustainability‐Linked Loans and any other debt instruments 
whose financial characteristics are linked to sustainability performance targets.

3. Alignment with Sustainability‐Linked Bond Principles 2020 and Sustainability‐Linked Loan Principles 2021
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3.2 Sustainability Performance Targets

1) Emissions reduction:
    We target to reduce our GHG emissions intensity to 0.40tCO2e/MWh by 2025. This target is aligned to the
    scientific guidance of limiting global warming to well-below 2° C, compared to pre-industrial levels. 

    We also target to reduce our absolute GHG emissions to 2.7 million tCO2e by 2030. This target is aligned to the
    scientific guidance of limiting global warming to 1.5° C, compared to pre-industrial levels.

2) Renewable growth:
    We target to grow gross installed renewable energy capacity to 10GW by 2025.

3.1 Key Performance Indicators

As an energy producer, our generation activities release greenhouse gas emissions that contribute to climate change. 
It is of critical importance to minimise negative impact by reducing our operational emissions, while enhancing our 
positive impact by growing our renewable energy capacity. The KPIs we have selected are core, relevant and material 
to our business. These KPIs suitably measure the progress of our transformation towards a low-carbon and sustainable 
solutions portfolio, delivery of net-zero emissions in 2050, and contribution to the UN SDGs.

Table 1: List of KPIs

Units Ra�onaleUN SDG Contribu�onKPIs

GHG absolute emissions4 
(Scope 1 and 2)

GHG emissions intensity3

(Scope 1 and 2)
1

2

3 Gross installed renewable 
energy capacity5

tCO2e

tCO2e/MWh

GW

SDG 13

SDG 13

SDG 7

KPI#1 is a key measure to track our performance against 
our 2025 emissions intensity target.

KPI#2 is a key measure to track our progress on 
significantly reducing GHG emissions by 2030 and 
delivering net-zero by 2050.

KPI#3 will support KPI#1, our Climate Action Plan 2021 
and our strategic plan to transform our portfolio from 
brown to green.

3 Group GHG emissions intensity includes our total direct emissions (Scope 1) from our activities, indirect emissions (Scope 2) from our energy consumption and 
biogenic emissions from bioenergy feedstocks divided by total energy generated and purchased. It is calculated using an equity share approach for all our operations 
in accordance with the GHG Protocol.

4 Group absolute GHG emissions includes our total direct emissions (Scope 1) from our activities and indirect emissions (Scope 2) from our energy consumption. It is 
calculated using an equity share approach for all our operations in accordance with the GHG Protocol.

5 Gross installed renewable energy capacity includes wind, solar and energy storage capacity. It refers to 100% of the tested gross capacity of the plant at commercial 
operation date or after major upgrades, and assumes 100% ownership of the facility.

6 SPT threshold will be specified in the SLTs documentation, as applicable.

Factors that support or might put achievement of SPTs6 at risk will be disclosed in the relevant SLT(s) 
documentation, according to relevant documentation. 
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Figure 1: Sembcorp's historical performance and targets for KPI#1 and KPI#2: GHG emissions (intensity and absolute)

Figure 2: Sembcorp's historical performance and targets for KPI#3: Gross installed renewable energy capacity (GW)

� Gross installed renewable energy (GW)     � SPT#3 (GW)

 � GHG emissions intensity (tCO2e/MWh)     � SPT#1 (tCO2e/MWh)     ■ GHG absolute emissions (million tCO2e)     ■ SPT#2 (million tCO2e)

Sustainability Performance Targets (SPTs)

GHG emissions intensity 
(Scope 1 and 2)

Absolute GHG emissions
(Scope 1 and 2)

Gross installed renewable
energy capacity

2025 Target: 0.40tCO2e/MWh
2020 Baseline: 0.54tCO2e/MWh
Observation date: 31 Dec 2025

2030 Target: 2.7 million tCO2e
2020 Baseline: 26.5 million tCO2e
Observation date: 31 Dec 2030

2025 Target: 10GW
2020 Baseline: 2.6GW
Observation date: 31 Dec 2025

SPT#1 SPT#2 SPT#3



3.3 Financial Characteristics

This section of the Framework only applies to Sustainability‐Linked Bonds and Sustainability‐Linked Loans.

The proceeds of Sembcorp’s SLT(s) will be used for general corporate purposes and refinancing of existing debt.

The failure by Sembcorp to satisfy the chosen SPT(s) as of the relevant Sustainability Performance Target Observation 
Date may trigger a step‐up margin, bringing an increase in the interest rate applicable to interest periods following such 
reference date.

The achievement by Sembcorp of the chosen SPT(s) as of the relevant Sustainability Performance Target Observation 
Date may trigger a step-down applicable to interest periods following such reference date.

The step‐up or step-down margin, as applicable, will be specified in the relevant SLT(s) documentation.

3.4 Reporting

Sembcorp is committed to transparency in reporting on its SLTs. Sembcorp will make the following information, but 
not limited to, on SLTs available on its website and Annual / Sustainability Report and update it at least annually over 
the period of the SLTs still outstanding:

 • Up‐to‐date information on the performance of the selected KPI, including the baseline where relevant;
 • Up‐to‐date information on the SPT outlining the performance against the SPT and the related impact,
               and timing of such impact, on a financial instrument performance;
 • Any relevant information enabling investors to monitor the progress of the SPT; and
 • An assurance report on our sustainability indicators including our KPIs.

3.5 Verification

Sembcorp’s Framework has been reviewed by DNV Business Assurance Singapore Pte. Ltd., who provided a Second 
Party Opinion, confirming the alignment with the Sustainability‐Linked Bond Principles (SLBP) 2020 administered by 
the ICMA, and Sustainability‐Linked Loan Principles (SLLP) 2021, administered by LSTA, APLMA and LMA. 

An External Verifier will verify the performance of the KPIs annually. The External Verifier will be a qualified provider 
of third party assurance or attestation services. 
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Amendments to this Framework

Sembcorp will review this Framework from time to time, including its alignment to updated versions of the relevant 
principles and when they are released, with the aim of adhering to the best practices in the market. Sembcorp will 
also review this Framework in case of material changes in the perimeter, methodology, and in particular KPIs and / 
or the SPT’s calibration.

Such a review may result in this Framework being updated and amended. Any future updated version of this Frame-
work that may exist will either keep or improve the current levels of transparency and reporting disclosures, includ-
ing the corresponding review by an external reviewer, where necessary. The updated Framework, if any, will be 
published on Sembcorp’s website and will replace this Framework. 



Sembcorp Industries Ltd
Co Regn No. 199802418D

30 Hill Street #05-04
Singapore 179360
Tel: (65) 6723 3113
www.sembcorp.com

Disclaimer

This Sustainable Financing Framework is for information purposes only. Unless specifically referred to in an offering 
document, this Sustainable Financing Framework cannot be relied upon in connection with, and does not constitute 
or form part of, any offer to sell or offer to buy securities of Sembcorp (including any subsidiary of Sembcorp).
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SCHEDULE 4 TO THE PRICING SUPPLEMENT 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS, PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNTS AND 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS OF SEMBCORP INDUSTRIES LTD AND 

ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

 

The information contained in this Schedule has been extracted from the annual report of Sembcorp 

Industries Ltd for the financial year ended 31 December 2020 and has not been specifically prepared 

for inclusion in this Pricing Supplement. The financial statements of Sembcorp Industries Ltd for the 

financial year ended 31 December 2020 have been prepared in accordance with SFRS(I) and IFRS. 

 

 

  



  Group    Company 

(S$ million) Note
December 31, 

2020
December 31, 

2019
December 31, 

2020
December 31, 

2019

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment D1 7,204 12,203 383 409

Investment properties D2 135 128 – –

Investments in subsidiaries G1 – – 2,308 2,646

Associates and joint ventures G5 1,588 1,696 – –

Other financial assets H2 250 266 – –

Trade and other receivables E1 995 2,170 3 349

Contract costs B2(c) 1 2 – –

Intangible assets D3 348 630 26 26

Deferred tax assets B3(b) 37 62 – –

10,558 17,157 2,720 3,430

Current assets

Inventories E2 196 386 4 4

Trade and other receivables E1 1,571 2,048 91 83

Contract assets B2(c) 15 1,501 – –

Contract costs B2(c) 1 90 – –

Assets held for sale B6 30 75 – –

Other financial assets H2 159 228 – –

Cash and cash equivalents E4 1,032 1,767 358 1,123

3,004 6,095 453 1,210

Total assets 13,562 23,252 3,173 4,640

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables E3 1,159 2,844 99 244

Lease liabilities D1.1 11 34 4 4

Contract liabilities B2(c) 141 172 3 3

Provisions H3 26 34 11 11

Liabilities held for sale B6 – 31 – –

Other financial liabilities H2 40 50 – –

Current tax payable 157 204 55 74

Interest-bearing borrowings C6 593 2,643 – –

2,127 6,012 172 336

Net current assets 877 83 281 874

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

  Group    Company 

(S$ million) Note
December 31, 

2020
December 31, 

2019
December 31, 

2020
December 31, 

2019

Non-current liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities B3(b) 294 348 28 29

Other long-term payables E3 108 131 1,613 171

Lease liabilities D1.1 215 470 112 116

Provisions H3 38 142 11 10

Other financial liabilities H2 98 44 – –

Interest-bearing borrowings C6 7,135 8,157 – –

Contract liabilities B2(c) 71 69 28 30

7,959 9,361 1,792 356

Total liabilities 10,086 15,373 1,964 692

Net assets 3,476 7,879 1,209 3,948

Equity attributable to owners of the Company:

Share capital C2 566 566 566 566

Reserve for own shares C3 (11) (4) (11) (4)

Other reserves C3 (369) (319) * *

Revenue reserve 3,153 5,827 654 2,585

3,339 6,070 1,209 3,147

Perpetual securities C4 – 801 – 801

3,339 6,871 1,209 3,948

Non-controlling interests G4 137 1,008 – –

Total equity 3,476 7,879 1,209 3,948

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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  Group 

(S$ million) Note 2020 2019*

Continuing operations

Turnover B1, B2 5,447 6,735

Cost of sales (4,660) (5,753)

Gross profit 787 982

General and administrative expenses (344) (356)

Other operating income 126 189

Non-operating income 49 26

Non-operating expenses (176) (135)

Finance income C7 35 39

Finance costs C7 (499) (483)

Share of results of associates and joint ventures, net of tax 233 186

Profit before tax 211 448

Tax expense B3 (32) (115)

Profit from continuing operations1 B4 179 333

Discontinued operation

Loss from discontinued operation, net of tax1 G3 (330) (116)

Loss on the Distribution (970) –

Loss from discontinued operation (1,300) (116)

(Loss) / Profit for the year (1,121) 217

Profit attributable to:

Owners of the Company:

Profit for the year from continuing operations 157 305

Loss for the year from discontinued operation (1,154) (58)

(Loss) / Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company (997) 247

Non-controlling interests:

Profit for the year from continuing operations 22 28

Loss for the year from discontinued operation (146) (58)

Loss for the year attributable to non-controlling interests (124) (30)

(Loss) / Profit for the year (1,121) 217

Earnings per share (cents): B5

Basic (56.81) 11.81

Diluted (56.81) 11.74

Earnings per share (cents) – Continuing operations: B5

Basic 7.84 15.06

Diluted 7.78 14.96

*	 Comparative information has been re-presented due to a discontinued operation (Note G3).
1	 After elimination of inter-segment finance income of S$38 million (2019: S$27 million) with corresponding reduction of inter-segment finance expense in 

discontinued operation.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

  Group 

(S$ million) Note 2020 2019*

(Loss) / Profit for the year (1,121) 217

Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Foreign currency translation differences for foreign operations (17) (94)

Exchange differences on monetary items forming part of net investment in foreign operation (2) (3)

Net change in fair value of cash flow hedges (143) 36

Net change in fair value of cash flow hedges reclassified to profit or loss 105 (15)

Cost of hedging reserve – changes in fair value (43) –

Cost of hedging reserve – reclassified to profit or loss 42 –

Realisation of reserves upon the Distribution (125) –

Realisation of reserve upon disposal of joint venture – (1)

Realisation of reserve upon disposal of subsidiaries / reclassified to assets held for sale 36 (3)

Share of other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures (16) (12)

Income tax relating to these items B3(c) 1 (6)

(162) (98)

Items that may not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Defined benefit plan actuarial gains and losses (11) 7

Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (14) 40

Income tax relating to this items B3(c) 2 (1)

(23) 46

Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax B3(c) (185) (52)

Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the year (1,306) 165

Total comprehensive (loss) / income attributable to:

Owners of the Company (1,180) 201

Non-controlling interests (126) (36)

Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the year (1,306) 165

Total comprehensive (loss) / income attributable to owners of the Company:

Continuing operations (26) 265

Discontinued operation (1,154) (64)

(1,180) 201

*	 Comparative information has been re-presented due to a discontinued operation (Note G3).

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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  Group 

(S$ million) 2020 2019

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year:

Continuing operations 179 333

Discontinued operation (1,300) (116)

Adjustments for:

Dividend (2) *

Finance income (73) (132)

Finance costs 569 586

Depreciation and amortisation 579 682

Amortisation of deferred income and capital grants (4) –

Share of results of associates and joint ventures, net of tax (233) (184)

(Gain) / Loss on disposal of:

–– property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and other financial assets (9) (21)

–– assets held for sale 30 (70)

Gain on disposal and liquidation of investments in subsidiaries (20) (16)

Changes in fair value of financial instruments 25 8

Loss on the Distribution 970 –

Equity settled share-based compensation expenses 8 10

Allowance for:

–– impairment of investment in an associate and a joint venture 113 –

–– impairment loss in value of assets and assets written off, net 70 96

–– impairment of goodwill 27 65

–– expected credit loss 12 7

–– intangible assets 6 64

–– impairment on assets reclassified to held for sale 4 64

Negative goodwill (17) (6)

Provision for fines – 7

Provision for site restoration 4 –

Inventories written down and allowance for stock obsolescence (net) 134 *

Tax expense (Note B3(a)) (25) 78

Operating profit before working capital changes 1,047 1,455

Changes in:

Inventories (50) 124

Receivables (Note (b)) (51) 239

Payables (302) (206)

Contract costs (5) 188

Contract assets (163) (479)

Contract liabilities 118 (245)

594 1,076

Tax paid (103) (99)

Net cash from operating activities 491 977

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

  Group 

(S$ million) 2020 2019

Cash flows from investing activities

Dividend received 198 229

Interest received 68 104

Proceeds from:

–– disposal of interests in subsidiaries, net of cash disposed 54 (10)

–– divestment of asset held for sale 47 197

–– sale of property, plant and equipment 14 27

–– sale of intangible assets * 7

–– disposal of other financial assets and business 150 503

Loan repayment from related parties 1 10

Non-trade balances with related corporations, net of repayment 5 (2)

Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired (9) –

Acquisition of additional investments in joint ventures and associates (2) (11)

Acquisition of other financial assets (165) (567)

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and investment properties (Note (c)) (318) (925)

Purchase of intangible assets (15) (9)

Cash balances transferred to held for sale, net of advance received – (4)

Distribution in specie, net of cash in SCM (1,309) –

Net cash used in investing activities (1,281) (451)
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  Group 

(S$ million) 2020 2019

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from share issued to non-controlling interests of subsidiaries 599 19

Proceeds from share options exercised with issue of treasury shares (1) –

Purchase of treasury shares (15) (4)

Repayment of lease liability (28) (35)

Proceeds from borrowings 5,241 4,007

Repayment of borrowings (4,351) (3,886)

Acquisition of non-controlling interests – (91)

Dividends paid to owners of the Company (54) (71)

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests of subsidiaries (8) (20)

(Payment) / receipt in restricted cash held as collateral 5 (27)

Perpetual securities distribution paid (818) (36)

Capital reduction paid to non-controlling interests * (4)

Interest paid (515) (544)

Net cash from / (used in) financing activities 55 (692)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (735) (166)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 1,740 1,923

Effect of exchange rate changes on balances held in foreign currency 4 (17)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (Note E4) 1,009 1,740

a.	 In September 2020, the Company subscribed to SCM’s S$1.5 billion equity rights issue through the conversion of a loan 
receivable from SCM. The Company subsequently distributed all its shares in SCM to its ordinary shareholders through a 
distribution in specie.

b.	 During the year, the Group has received strategic spares of S$16 million as settlement with a vendor recognised in 2019 under 
other receivables.

c.	 In 2019, SCM acquired property, plant and equipment with an aggregate cost of S$1,068 million of which S$48 million was 
settled via offset of payables and dividend receivable from a joint venture (Note D1(xiii)).

d.	 In 2019, S$24 million was advance paid to a supplier in prior year and S$3 million relates to provision for restoration costs 
as disclosed in Note H3. Included in the Group’s trade and other payables is an amount of S$256 million relating to accrued 
capital expenditure.

e.	 In 2019, the Group acquired intangible assets with an aggregate cost of S$18 million of which S$9 million was acquired by 
means of a swap of shares in Note D3(c).

f.	 In 2019, changes in receivables included an amount of S$58 million of service concession receivables from the Sirajganj Unit 
4 power projects which was recognised in accordance with SFRS(I) INT 12 Service Concession Arrangements accounting 
guidelines. The receivables will be collected over the period of the concession contracts from the time the power plants 
commence commercial operations. In 2020, all power plants have commenced commercial operations.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

A.	 About These Financial Statements
Sembcorp Industries Ltd (the Company) is a company incorporated in the Republic of Singapore and has its registered office 
at 30 Hill Street #05-04, Singapore 179360.

The Company is 49.48% owned by Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited. Under SFRS(I) 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, 
the Company’s immediate and ultimate holding company is Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited, a company incorporated in 
the Republic of Singapore.

The financial statements comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the Group and individually as 
Group entities) and the Group’s interests in associates, joint ventures and joint operations.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on February 25, 2021.

A1.	 Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (International) 
(SFRS(I)s) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). SFRS(I) comprise standards and interpretations that are 
equivalent to IFRSs.

All references to SFRS(I)s and IFRSs are subsequently referred to as SFRS(I) in these financial statements unless otherwise 
specified.

The financial statements are presented in Singapore dollar which is the Company’s functional currency. All financial information 
presented in Singapore dollar has been rounded to the nearest million unless otherwise stated. ‘*’ denotes financial value that 
is less than S$1 million. The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except as otherwise described 
in the accounting policies below.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with SFRS(I)s requires management to make judgements, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income 
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions, which are based on historical experience and various other factors 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, form the basis of judgement about carrying value of the assets and 
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in 
the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Information about key management judgements and estimates that are considered material to the financial statements are 
incorporated in respective notes to the financial statements.

The COVID-19 pandemic and the responses of governments in dealing with the pandemic have reduced the level of general 
activity within the community, economy and business operations globally. The COVID-19 crisis and a decline in energy prices 
have impacted and will continue to impact the Group’s earnings, cash flow and financial position. The financial statements 
have been prepared based on assumptions and conditions prevalent as at December 31, 2020. Given ongoing economic 
uncertainty, these assumptions could change in the future.
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SCHEDULE 5 TO THE PRICING SUPPLEMENT 

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF 

SEMBCORP FINANCIAL SERVICES PTE. LTD. 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

 

The information contained in this Schedule has been extracted from the financial statements of 

Sembcorp Financial Services Pte. Ltd. for the financial year ended 31 December 2020 and has not 

been specifically prepared for inclusion in this Pricing Supplement. The financial statements of 

Sembcorp Financial Services Pte. Ltd. for the financial year ended 31 December 2020 have been 

prepared in accordance with SFRS(I). 

 

 

 












































































































